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NENE EDUCATION TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trusiees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report,
and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

In July 2018 Windmill Primary School and Newton Road School joined the Nene Education Trust (formerly Manor
Learning Trust) creating an extended multi-academy trust which already included a junior academy, St Peter’s
Church of England Academy, Stanwick Primary Academy and a secondary academy, Manor School Sports College
in Raunds. In June 2019 the Trust further expanded to include Woodford Church of England School and Raunds
Park Infants School. In August 2021, Redwell Primary School along with the 5 Wells Development Centre became
part of the organisation. The Trusts academies have a combined pupil capacity of 3,124 and had a roll of 2,963 in
the October 2022 Census.

Structure, governance and management

Constituti

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The charitable company operates as the Nene Education Trust comprised of Manor School Sports College, St
Peters CE Academy, Stanwick Primary Academy, Windmill Primary School, Newton Road School, Raunds Park
Infants School, Woodford Church of England Primary School and Redwell Primary School.

The frustees of Nene Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included
in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

During the year under review the Trustees held 6 Board Meetings.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

ustees' i nities
In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust business.

Methed of recruitment and appointment ior election of trustees

Trustees of the Nene Education Trust are appointed by either the Secretary of State for Education, the Members of
the Trust, or, for Foundation Trustees, by the Peterborough Diocese Education Trust. Parent representatives on
Local Advisory Boards are elected by parents of registered pupils at the academies. The CEO is treated as an ex
officio trustee. The Articles of Association require no less than five Trustees. The term of office for any Trustees,
shall be 4 years from the date of appointment except the CEO who remains a trustee whilst in post.

The terms of office for four Trustees were due for renewal in Summer 2022, and all expressed the wish to remain
with the Trust:- three as Trustees and one as a Member to fill the vacancy left by the resignation of Lance Jones. All
were ratified by the Members Board and all are experienced and active members of the Board, which continues to
provide strong strategic direction and challenge for the Trust.

Evaluation of the Trustees individual and collective skills takes place annually. In the 2021-22 skills audit and
extemal review of the Trust carried out by Sir David Carter, a need was identified for more local community
representation and professional marketing skills and experience. As one trustee, Georgina Rose resigned in
January 2022, and there being an existing vacancy, the person specification focussed on filling this skills gap. Only
one appointment was made, Jenna Weedon, with effect from 1 September 2022. Jenna not only fills this gap but
she is also a parent with children in a Trust school and this along with one other Trustee with children at a Trust
school, strengthens this representation on the Trust Board.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The replacement of Stephen Atkins as a Diocesan trustee, with Peter French in July 2022 has further strengthened
the education skills and knowledge on the Trust Board as Peter has extensive education knowledge and experience
in the local area.

The former National School Commissioner, Sir David Carter, worked with the Trust Board throughout 2021-22 to
conduct reviews of Trust development, leadership and governance and offer a highly informed and objective eye on
progress against the Trust Strategic Plan.

A Trustee induction handbook was developed in 2022 and has been used to induct the two new trustees, The
handbook s used as guidance but training and induction provided for new Trustees is tailored to their existing
experience and requirements, Where necessary induction will provide training on charity and educational, legal and
financial matiers. All Trustees and Local Advisory Board members have annual training ih safequarding, Prevent,
and GDPR. ’

All Truétees aré given the opportunity to visit Trust schools and meet staff and students. All Trustees have access
to policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they need to undertake their
role as Trustees.

The Induction .and development of Local Advisory Board members is primarily focussed on their role within the
school community ~ Chairs of LABs and Principals of schaols are involved in this: All induction tends to be done
informatly and is tailored specifically to the individual. All LAB memibers taking “linked™ specialist montioring roles
such as Attendance and Behaviour linked roles are given annual tiaining and ongoing suppart by the Trust policy
leads. All Trustees and LAB members have access to training on both.education and governance threughout the
year via the National College and specific courses are recommended to them. Trustees have access to the
Confederation of School Trusts update information and the Govemance Manager provides them with termly
newsletter updates.

Oraanisational structure
The management structure of the Trust consists of the Members Board, Board of Trustees, the Local Advisory
Bodies, specific committees, and the CEQ.

The Trustees fulfil a strategic role: setting general policy, approving an annual Trust plan and budget, monitoring
performance against the plan and budget and making decisions about the Trustees of the charitable company, and
capital expenditure, appointment of the CEO and COO, and LAB Chairs and community members of LABs.

The CEO has taken on the role of Accounting Officer. The Education Standards Committee reviews annual
improvement plans, monitors academy performance and the Trust school improvément and education strategies.
The Finarice Committee recommends budgets to the Board of Trustees. The HR Committee has responsibility for
key performance indicators relating to staff performance, absence, recruitment and retention. The Audit & Risk
Committeé ensure that risk management underpins activity across the Trust. The board delegates a number of
functions to the Local Advisory Boards (LABs) at each acadeiny. Each LAB monitors key areas of performance in
safeguarding, looked after children, health & safety, pupil premium, SEND and as well-as overseeing parent and
community liaison, ensures that the curriculum meets the needs of the community the school serves.

The Trust Central Team consists of CEO, Governance Manager and Executive Assistant to the Trust Executive,
Chief Operations Officer, HR Manager and leam, Finance Manager and team, Director of School Improvement. A
Director of Professional Learning was appointed in Nov'21. These managers control the academies at an Exécutive
level implementing the policies taid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them.
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rrangements for settin . personn

‘Salaries-for all key management are approved by the Board of Directors pay review arrangements as set out in the
pay policy. The pay incréase to key management follows National Agreements in line with Department of Education
guidance. For Principals a pupil number banding calculation is used to inform the pay range salary.

For the CEO, COO, Director of School Improvement and Director of Professional Learning an independent salary
review was undertaken with the support of Browne Jacobson in 2021. A comprehensive job evaluation and
comparison was made ‘across the whole sector and has resulted in Trustees approving a robust and visible
approach to Executive Pay.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during
the relevant period 3

Full-time equivalent employee number 2.80

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% 3
51%-99%

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill -
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid frade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

Engagement wi loyees

The mmeeting arrangements which the Academny Trust operates allows for information on maiters that affect
employees to be cascaded through the Principals and Senior Leadership Teams 1o all employees.

During the year we have further developed our leadership programmes, our Mental Health and ‘Well-being policy to
assist with employee engagement/development. We have also increased our investment of time into our Mental
Héalth and Wellbeing Lead who works across all schools with staff and students. Qur Trust Safeguarding Lead
offers ongoing supervision and guidance fo DSL's and leaders. We undertook a trustwide staff survey at the end of
July 22 and have benchmarked this against national staff surveys to enable leaders and local committees to

foeus on developing the experience of staff in the future.

Disabled emplovees

Nene Education Trust is committed to equality and diversity of all its employees. Capital investment s utilised to
adapt the physical environment of all Trust buildings to ensure accessibility, in terms of: ramps to access
classrooms and all teaching blocks, disabled toilets are installed, and door widths are adequate to enable
wheelchair access. The policy of the Academy Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and
employees with disabilities. The Academy Trust does this by providing support throughout all recruitment processes,
by making support resources available and through ongoing training and career development.
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Related parties and other connected charitiés and organisations

Nene Education Trust owns 100% of the issued ordinary shares of Manor Sports and Leisure Limited, a company
incorporated in England and Wales (registration no. 07877518). Further details regarding the subsidiary company
are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

We have an SLA with Peterborough Diocese who also have minority proportion govemnance representation in our
articles.

Objectives and activities

Objec ai

The principal object and activity of the Academy Trust is to provide education for pupils of different abilities between
the ages of 3 and 19.

In accordance with the articles of association the Academy Trust has adopted a "Scheme of Governance” approved
by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for
admitting students to the academies, the catchment area from which the students are drawn, and that the
curriculum should comply with the subsiance of the national curriculum.

Objectives. strategies and activiti
The main objectives of the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2022 are summarised below:

The Nene Education Trust has compiled a Strategic Development Plan outlining the goals and targets of the Trust
over the period 2021-2026.

The new plan shares and defines the vision of Trustees, expanding on the Trust's strategic ebjectives, defining key
goals and performance measures and bullds on individual Academy successes already achieved. The vision is to
ensure that our children and young people are challenged continually t6 -complete their education successfully, to
develop self-confidence and self-esteem and to be proactive in determining their career pathway.

Mission (Strategic t
Raising aspirations and developing character is at the heart of ‘everything we do within our schools to enable each
young person to achieve highly and be successful in life, contributing back to the world we five in. Throughout their
educational journey in the Nene Education Trust, we aim to develop all our learners within a positive environmenit

for learning, along with opportunities to develop their spiritual and moral compass so that they grow with integrity.

Through a set of shared principles, we will develop a multi-academy trust of highly effective and sustainable
schools. As a group of schools working in collaboration as one, we will improve and maintain high educational
standards in order to advance education for the public benefit.

Our Strategic Intent will be achieved by delivering the Trust Strategic Plan 2021/26 through the 6 key areas:

Educational Excellence
School Improvement
Developmental Organisation
Infrastructure

Our Wellness

Collective Responsibility

Our shared principles are the DNA running through all we do in creating the culture of our successful multi-academy
trust.

People first

Working together

Outward facing and ambitious
Autonomy

Celebrating our achievement

-6-
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Egual Opporiunities Policy

The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of gocd practice in the workplace. Nene
Education Trust aims to establish equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a working
environment in which the contribution and need of all people are fully valued. To this end, the Trust has an
Equalities Statement, updated annually and an Equality Plan which scopes out areas for action in the following year.

Public benefit.
The trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

The Trustees ensure that the Academy's activities, as described above, are undertaken in line with the charitable
.objects and aims of the Trust. The Academy Trust follows thé school admissions criteria and policies of North
Northamptonshire Council to ensure that the basis for admissions is transparent and as fair as possible to all
potential pupils applying to the academy and'is comparable 1o other local state-funded schools and academies.

Strategic report

Achievements and performance

At the Nene Education Trust, it is not outcomes and results that drive our thinking, performance, and development.
We are confident that our focus-on school improvement, forward thinking leadership, high quality teaching and a
relevant and inspifing curriculum will in fact take care of the outcomes regardless of the requirements of these. The
journey that our young people go on throughout their time in our schools will Iead 1o improved cutcomes — both
socially and academically: Flipping this mindsel is erucial and it's an approach that we are very proud of and cannot
divert from.

At the heart of our school improvement strategy is a commitment to facilitate partnership working between all Trust
schools, encouraging each to become self-evaluating and outward looking.

1. The goal is for every teacher in every classroom to be as good as they can be in what they teach (the curriculum)
and how they teach {pedagogy).

2. For this to happen, we need to mobilise for every teacher the best evidence from research.

3. There is no improvement for pupils without improvement in teaching, and no improvement in teaching without the
best professional development for teachers.

4. Strong structures can facilitate better professional development and thus better teaching and improvement for
pupils.

Schools are only as good as the people who work in them. We endeavour to create the conditions and relationships
in every school for leaders and teachers to flourish and pupils to succeed. All schools should be learning
organisations where professional learning and continuous improvement is the.norm. This requires a supportive,
professional culture; ‘clarity in the expectations of what great looks like; effective support and mentoring; -and
sustained leadership commitment. While a range of factors -contribule to sustained school improvement, noné are
more important or fundamental than the quality of professional development for teachers. School leaders, through
ensuring that relationships within their setting are excellent, play a pivotal role in creating this culture.

Our goal is for every pupil in our ofganisation to be taught by an expert teacher, with strong pedagogical content
knowledge and understanding of hew children learn. This requires schools to be effective learning organisations for
the people who work in them — nurturing, valuing, and rewarding ongoing development of knowledge and pedagogy
through regular constructive feedback, professional discusslon of practice, observation of othérs, and opporiunity to
engage with research evidence.
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The Nene Education Trust School Improvement Team, under the guidance and direction of the Director of School
Improvement, has overall responsibility for ensuring each school in the Trust provides the bast possible education
for ail children in its care and for supporting and challenging Principals in relation to their role and responsibilities. To
achieve this, we ensure that we know our schools well, including individual strengths and priorities for develapment.
In response to this, the school improvement team provides support and challenge for individual teams proportionate
to our assessment of need.

There have been a wide range of successes across our group of schools during this year. Some of these successes
are briefly summarised below:

+ The impact of the Trust Lead roles, appointed at the beginning of 2021/22 academic year, has been
impressive. This includes the Trust Lead for SEND, the Trust Lead for Safeguarding, the Trust Lead for
Mental Health and Wellbeing and the Director of Professional Learning. The capacity of the School
Improvement Team, led by the Director of School Improvement, has added and continues to add great
value to our schools.

« The in-house Local Offer, led by our Trust SEND Lead, was a great success and very gratefully received. in
order to support all of our pupiis with SEND, the Trust board agreed to provide additional financial
resources to ensure we could provide the expertise and provision needed to work towards bridging the gap
between what was being made available as part of the Local Offer and what we felt our pupils need and
deserve. Additional funding was be made available until August 2022, while the Local Autherity were not
providing a ‘high needs offer’ and external professionals had excessive backlogs and limited capacity to
assess or review pupils.

« A continuing success over the past year is undoubtedly the extent to which our community of sehools have
continued to grow closer. Whilst remaining unique and individualised, our well-renowned education strategy
— focused on our exceptional Work. World. Weliness. curriculum approach - has supported school leaders
to focus on high-class curriculum, teaching and learning in their sehools; taking -owneérship and
responsibility for their students, whilst at the same time recognising that support and challenge is there
when required.

Looking back...

School Improvement Priority] 1. Improve the teaching of writing so that it is consistent across the

areas at beginning 2021/22 school and leads to good progress for all children

academic year 2. Embed the planned curriculum, ensuring intent is clear in all subjects
and that this is reflected in classroom practice

3. Ensure all staff understand the mastery approach in maths, and deliver
it effectively across the school

External support/reviews Andy Lakatos Review May 2022 — focus maths and early reading
Lisa Watson (external Headteacher) to support with development
of phonics

Hatton Academies Trust Leadership Link

» PiXL Associate

* Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary|= Foundation GLD in-line with-National

- attainment

= Y1 Phonics in-line with National

= Y2 outcomes in-line with National

-8-
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areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

Looking. forward... -
School Improvement  Prierity] 1. To develop the maths mastery approach across the school for -all

pupils.

To improve outcomes for SEND pupils.
To ensure consistency of approach to the teaching and learning of
Phonics and improve outcomes

External  support / Teviews  Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 3
ptanned + Resume support work with Lisa Watson
» PiXL Associate
* Maths Hub
* Lisa Watson
dwall Primary School e S IR e
Looking back. ..
Schodl  Improvement  Priority|1. For children not on track, to make more than expected progress by;

areas at beginning 2021/22
}academic year

» Refining the curriculum

« Focussing on progress

2. To increase effectiveness of teaching and learning by;

- Providing appropriate challenge and support

+ Providing a quality climate for leaming

3. To empower our children to be well rounded leamers by;
* Improving our weliness offer

Developing links within the school community:

External support/reviews

Andy Lakatos — Early Reading (Phonics) and EYFSx 2
Maths Hub

PiXL Associate

Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary,
- attainment

1 Foundation GLD slightly above National
1 Y1 Phonics significantly below National

1 Y2 outcomes slightly above National

| Y6 outcomes significantly below National

Looking forward...
School  Improvement  Priority| 1. To improve the attainment of phonics in Year 1
reas at beginning 2022/23| 2. To improve the attainment and progress of pupils in writing
l:cademic year 3. To improve learning in the EYFS setting to ensure all children have
access to an engaging and purposeful environment
External reviews/support| « Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 1
planhed + RWI Development Days

» PiXL Associate

-

+ Maths Hub
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Looking back...

School Improvement Priority] 1. To enhance the school's speech and language offer, as pupils often

areas at beginning 2021/22 arrive in school with speech and communication skills that are

1academic year significantly below the national average baseline, to ensure maximum
progress

2. To enhance the curriculum offer for the pupils in Key Stage One,
building on the strong start in Foundation to promote ‘greater
independence and maximise pragress of pupils

3. To ensure subject leads and school staff to review and enhance the
role of feedback and assessment across the curriculum areas to
maximise progress of pupils

4. To enhance the curriculum offer with a particular focus on the World
aspect of our curriculum, ensuring our children are given a breadth of
opportunity and experiences and these are explicit to the children and
that they then can relate them to the school and British values

External support/reviews « Andy Lakatos x 2 visits — Reading, SEND, EYFS, Maths, wider

curriculum

Reading Hub

PiXL Associate

Maths Hub

Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary|t Foundation GLD slightly above National

- attainment

+ Y1 Phonics slightly above National
| Y2 outcomes significantly below National

! Y6 outcomes significantly below National

Looking forwerd...
School  Improvement Priorjty 1. To improve outcomes for SEND pupils and vulnerable students
areas at beginning 2022/23| 2. To improve the effectiveness of Subject Leadership
dcademic year 3. To improve outcomes in Mathematics
4. To raise outcomes to ensure we narrow the gap on the National
Average
External reviews/ support = Andy Lakatos to revisit Term 2
planned » PiXL Associate
» Maths Hub
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areas at beginning 2021/22
acatdemic year

[Stanwiak Peimary Academy i
LOokfhg back;..:-.
School Improvement Priority 1. Continuous Provision;

« To identify key elements of continuous provision to thread through
EYFS and KS1.

« To map out how continuous provision will progress from EYFS to
Year 2.

+ To implement a successful plan for continuous provision across
KS1 (EYFS and Year 1 2021/2022).

2. Leadership:

» Key loaders across the school have a secure understanding of
their roles and their intent.

+ Subject leaders have a secure knowledge of their intent and
implementation, as well as how to monitor this.

» Subject leaders have a secure understanding of the quality and
content of thelr subject taught across the school.

« School Leaders have a clear overview of what is being taught
across the school and are able to discuss a high-level overview of
this.

3. Curriculum:

To have clear sequences in each topic taught across ali lessons.
Clear links have been formed between subjects in each year group!
considering prior knowledge.

For pupils to understand the relevance of different topics in their
lives.

To have clear threads of diversity throughout the curriculum.

External support / reviews

Maths Hub

PiXL. Associate
Safeguarding Audit
Pen Green

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

1 Foundation GLD significantly above National
1 Y1 Phonics significantly above National
1 Y2 outcomes slightly above National

1 Y6 outcomes significantly below National

Looking forward...

Schod!  Improvement  Priority
areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

. To improve the teaching of mathematics, with specific focus on support
and challenge.

. To improve outcomes for Reading at the end of Key Stage Two,

_ To further develop subject leaders to enhance the opportunities
provided for pupils across the wider curriculum to “appropriately]
challenge and support pupils with SEND.

External
planned

support / reviews|

« Andy Lakatos to visit September 2022
¢ Maths Hub
¢ PiXL Associate

-11-
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areas at beginning 2021/22
academic year

t Peter's CE JuniorAcadémy R, o I DR U T e 4 s
Locking back...
School Improvement Priority] 1. Improve teaching and leaming, ensuring challenge for all children

including vulnerable and SEND pupils.
Embed a mastery approach the teaching and leaming in maths to
improve outcomes for MPA pupils.
. Ensure our curriculum offer supports all children to be coura'ge_ousj
advocates living in a diverse world.

Ensure all subject leaders take responsibility for the progress and
outcomes in their subject area.

External support/reviews

= Maths Hub

» Andy Lakatos November 2021 — maths focus
» Diocese support, focused on SIAMs

» PiXL Associate

End of Year outcomes summary]
- attainment

1+ Y4 times tables outcomes impressive
| Y6 combined outcome below national. Individual subjects in line with
national, especially maths

Looking forward...

School Improvement  Priority
areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

. Improve the attainment and progress of mid-prior attainers in maths.

improve the attainment and progress of SEND pupils in reading.

Build In consciously multi-cultural elements to the cumiculum and wider|

aspects to promote equality and diversity across the school,

. Develop a coaching model to support middle leadership with
monitoring and evaluation.

areas at beginning 2021/22
academic year

External support [/ reviews » Andy Lakatos to visit Term 3/4
planned * Diocese support
= Maths Hub support
« PiXL Associate
(Windrmill Primary School o Fil
Looking back...
School Improvement Priority] 1. To increase the impact of leadership on the standards of teaching,

learning, assessment across the school. _

Curriculum design (intent) and implementation leads to ‘improved

outcomes for all leamers and raised standards of attainment.

. To ensure the effective inclusion of children with additional needs lead

and secure their engagement in learning.

To promote positive mental health and well-being across the whole

school community.

. To strengthen EYFS provision and outcomes for all learners,
particularly boys.

External support/reviews

Maths Hub

English Hub

Andy Lakatos May 2022 — Reading and SEND
PiXL Associate

Interim Action Board

Safeguarding Audit

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

= Foundation GLD in-line with National
| Y1 Phonigs significantly below National
1 Y2 outcomes below National

1 Y6 outcomes above National

-12-
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WindriliPrimary Schosl
Looking forward... |
School Improvement Priority] 1. The teaching and Learning through the school to be good or better
areas at beginning 2022/23| 2. Implement new curriculum across the school
academic year 3. Improve the standard of writing across the school
4. Improve standards in maths across the school
5. To provide enrichment opportunities for all across the curriculum.
External support / reviews « Andy Lakatos to visit later in the year
planned « Maths Hub support
¢ Reading Hub support
* RWI Development Days
_> PiXL Associate
Woodford GE Pimary School & Nursery ‘
Looking back...
School Improvement Priority| 1. To develop consistency in the teaching of maths and ensure approach
areas at beginning 2021/22 is aligned to the mastery approach.
academic year 2. To develop consistency in the use of the teaching and learning wheel.
3. To raise expectations from staff, children and parents to ensure there is

a culture of stccess and high attainment across the school.

Externai support/reviews

Angela Griffiths — external HT

Andy Lakatos March 2022 — reading and science focus
Diocese support, focused on SIAMs

Hatton Academies Trust Leadership Link

PiXL Associate

-Safeguarding Audit — Trevor Kendrick

End of Year outcomes summary
- attainment

1 Foundation GLD slightly above National
= Y1 Phonics in-line with National
= Y2 outcomes in-line with National (maths below)

1 Y6 outcomes above Nationat

Looking forward...

School Improvement Priority,
areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

-

To have a coherent and well sequenced curriculum
To develop the Maths mastery approach across the school for all
children

. To Improve outcomes for SEND and vulnerable children
. Developing Character — Our Wellness / Collective Responsibility

External

support / reviewsr
planned

Andy Lakatos to visit Term %
Diocese support

Maths Hub support

PiXL Associate

-13-
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|Manor School

Looking back...

School Improvement Priority
areas at beginning 2021/22
academic year

. Develop an integrated CPD portal and a culture of coaching and action

. To develop all staff confidence with supporting students with SEND
. Improve the pace and

to ensurel
. ELT have greater clarity and impact at a whole school level on school

research amongst teachers and other staff to ensure that we identify,
refine and apply the best teacher practice of our students.

rigour quality assurance

improvements are sustained in identified areas of concern.

strategic measures.

External support/reviews

» Julie Bloor — weekly coaching to SLT, supported with evolution of]
SDP and SEF, designed leadership programme, WWW Review &
supported in development of maths at Manor.

» Mark Feldman — QA in several departments — history and social
sciences, PE & science

s Susan Byles — English Review

» ML Review

* Following the tragic death of one of our students, Callum
Woodcroft, various mental health and suicide awareness
agencies.

» Safeguarding Audit — Trevor Kendrick

End of Year outcomes summary|
- attainment

| KS4 Progress 8
=KS4 Attainment 8
t KS5 Attainment and Progress

Looking forward...

School Improvement Priority
areas at beginning 2022/23
academic year

1.

Consistency [Positive Environment — Developmental Organisation /
Infrastructure]: Integrate all aspects of our teaching and learning
strategy with our professional learning process to ensure high quality
application of our centralised pedagogies lead to sustained
improvements in practice and student outcomes.

2. Culture [Raising Aspirations — Educational Excellence / School
Improvement]: Need is identified early, and appropriate steps are taken
to meet that need.
3. Community [Developing Character — Our Weliness / Collective
Responsibility]: Engender a stronger culture of engagement and
participation from families and the wider community by improving their
knowledge and understanding of all aspects of school life.
External support / reviews| ¢ Julie Bloor — 3 x departmental reviews
planned * Appreciative Enquiry partnership with Wollaston School

» Standardisation and moderation across all key stages with
Wollaston School
+ We, Mind & Kelly Matters
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Key Stage 4 and 5 results 2022

A much more ‘normal’ summer examination series returned for the Year 11 and 13 cohorts completing their GCSE, A
Level and vocational gualifications in the summer of 2022. To compensale for and recognise the disruption because
of pandemic lockdowns and Covid 19, Ofqual and the Department for Education made reasonable adjustments for
this by sharing ‘advanced information'. This information outlined some of the content for students which definitely
would or would not appear-on the final written papers. In many cases this information was incredibly useful in many
cases although students and subject teachers reported that these were not helpful in a small number of subjects.

At both Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 Ofqual announced before the release of results that they intended that
outcomes would fall to approximately halfway between national averages pre-pandemic in 2019 and Teacher/Centre
Assessed Grades in 2021. This has broadly happened at Key Stage 5 while the return towards pre-pandemic
averages has not quite happened at Key Stage 4.

Headline figures have been provided in this report, and the Department for Education have published performance
tables for the first time since the start of the pandemic. However, these figures must still be treated with caution and
are not directly comparable with any recent year or other settings who may have been affected by the pandemic to
a greater or lesser extent than our school and community.

Key Stage 4 Headlines

¢ Attainment 8 — 44

¢ Progress 8--0.57

» Grade 5+ in English and maths — 39%

+ Grade 4+ in English and maths — 58%
« EBacc entry — 31.9%
* EBaccAPS-3.75

Overall, the attainment at Key Stage 4 was broadly in line with the final data collection point and what was
expected. In most attainment measures, these headlines were also, in line with 2019 outcomes. Unfortunately, the
progress measures are not as high as expected. This is parily due to the context of the national rise and then fall in
outcomes in recent years, but also significantly affected by the increased number of outliers than. ever before at
Manor. This year there were a larger cohort of students who were persistently absent throughout the year or didn't
engage well in the examination series. Comparing progress of those who were in school against those who were in
school for less than 80% of their Year 11 journey, a start -1.4 difference in progress measures is significant. A similar
picture can be seen across much of the East Midlands which overall achieved one of the lowest attainment
averages in the country. It is important to recognise that while the whole school picture in terms of progress'is lower
than anticipated, improvements were evident in priority areas over the last three years, incliding in maths and
sciences.

Key Stage 5 Headlines
» Overall average grade (as grade) — C+
« Qverall average point score — 32.46
« Applied general average grade — Merit+

Key Stage 5 results were very pleasing and in nearly all measures higher ‘than national In a year when it was
anticipated these might fall in line with the country. This means that the gap that existed between Manor and
national averages in 2019 is now closing with improvements from the battom 5% of schools nationally, despite lower
grade boundaries. The average grade improving from a D to a C+ is testament to the significant investment that has
geourred over the last five years in the Sixth Form at Manor. Equally, imporntant is the reduction in U grades and a
very positive average grade of B- for students with SEND.

Destinations post-16 continues to be an important measure and in 2022 all students who applied were given a place
at university, with 64% of students aftending their first-choice university, Of the students that applied to university,
33% of these applications were accepted into ‘top third’ universities. All students who did not follow a university
pathway went into employment, further education or an apprenticeship.
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Overall summary

While there will always be success stories within the Key Stage 4 and 5 results, there is still progress to be made,
particularly at Key Stage 4 and moving back towards national and a whole school focus on attendance which will
contribute significantly to this. These results should be seen as a legacy set of results given the significant context
that the school has been through in recent years and are seen as a benchmark for improvement over the next thrée
years with historically demonstrated capacity and experience to improve, as evident by the Sixth Form results in
2022 and the pre-pandemic journey of Key Stage 4.

One final thing to shout about...

The year 6 children came together across all of our NET primary schools to give them experiences through our NET
drivers of Work. World. Weliness. to allow for a greater oppartunity for our children to be secondary ready. It was a
fantastic experience for the children to develop their confidence in movifig around a secondary schoo, building
telationships with new people and give them knowledge and skills to. help begin thinking -about life beyond their
primary years, and how they Gan be mentally prepared for the transition to secondary school. This was a positive
and engaging experience that allowed the year 6 pupils to be immersed in the NET ethos, and for us to be confident
as educators that we. were preparing our children fo be in the best possible position, with some key fundamental
skills, to approach their secondary education.

Feedback from external reviews and leaders in our trust:

“The Trust was seen to have good school improvement capacity and the leadership of the Director of ‘Schaol
Improvement has been encouraged by the CEO, The leadership model developed to support the new Head of
Schaol at Manor deserves particular praise: it gives expérienced support to bath the leaders and to the school itself
thys preventing potential Isofation as the only secondary. Within the Trust, the subject development groups were
spoken of as a really good innovation. Building on this fo develop even more primary/secondary partnership would
be ideal and another very marketable model. The improved CPD offer was noted as a great -development,
contributing to both recruitment and retention of staff.” Martin Post {former Regional Schaol Commissioner).

What does being part of the Nene Education Trust mean to you?

Everything! It has given me excellent ypotiunities to learn + progress my career.

Being a part of NET allows me to remain in control of my school, where | can make the right judgements and
developments based on evidence relating to the pupils and community that we work with and allows for our
school to continue to be personalised. The community of leaders that work in close proximity allows for actual
support for each other and a feeling of togetherness and support.

Havinig access to specialist support when required and beiﬂg_able to support others when required too.

Being part of a trust supports development where expertise can be shared across whole school staff.

Strength in larger dept e.g HR, Finance, support for CIF bids

I love being part of a local cluster of schools and as a head | still have the autonomy to run my school. | value
the support of colleagues and the dlarity over the priorily areas.

The collaborative nature of being in a Trust means that you never foel alone. There is always someone to
contact if you need to ask a question.

Being within a group of schools with shared aims who can support each other and help each other improve.
Being supported by other principals and schools within the trust has helped me within my principal role. It has
been great to be a collective team , to share ideas and practices to ultimately improve outcomes for children
across the schools. The weekly newsletters are very helpful and keep me on track with actions required. | have
felt very supported by certain individuals (CEQ and my SIP) who | feel | can contact at any time and know they
will help.
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Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the board of
trustees continues to adopt the going concemn basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the

adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

The Trust are working hard to correct a small deficit of £85k (equivalent to 0.5% of annual income) which is as a
result of the following:

« During the year the trust over invested on capital works in the Trust's estate including where successful CIF
bids had required significant contributions from school reserves to be made alongside funds granted by the
ESFA.

« After 31 August 2022 management were made aware that pay increases proposed by the NJC for non-
teaching staff would be significantly higher than anficipated and budgeted for. The NJC payscales were
finalised at the unexpectedly high level and due to the materiality level would need to be backdated to April
22. This adjustment took a small surplus position to an overall deficit position of £85k after making an
adjustment totalling £113k.

The Trust Executive are correcting this position by taking the following proactive and mitigating actions:

employing an experienced CFO,

restructuring a range of teams including HR, Executive team, school leadership teams,
enforcing a temporary capital freeze,

freezing recruitment

reforecasting the budget and outturn position for the year to target further savings
reviewing all high spend areas.

The Trust has a net current asset position and has cash in the bank sufficient to meet current liabilities as they fall
due. The Trust are confident that controls are in place that are sufficient to manage spending, with a view to
returning to a surplus position in a realistic timeframe.

Protecting the success of the academy trust

Some particularly stand-out quotes from the feedback are:

Staff

“ oved the variety - Silhouette Drama group are fabulous. World of Work was amazing - so interesting. We had
some great visitors talking about their jobs. The Well Being activities were "magical” - according to one of my girls
and the STEM day was so interesting.”

“It was a really fab week and it was very enjoyable. The Year 6 children have been talking about their future
aspirations and it has left a fire in their belly to learn more. For me, this was the best outcome. they have leamt
about the world and future careers and they can see themselves fitting in.”

“Yes! So great to see the kids make connections, build on what they know, go out of their comfort zone and leam
how that relates to what starting secondary will be like, *

“And more ... The year 6's were given the opportunity to meet people from outside the school who had amazing
thinigs to tell them and that their future Is waiting for them.”

“| think all year groups could benefit from this kind of week - with lots of outside visitors to give children the
experiences that they would not necessatily get in their own lives.”
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“There are so many things you can do out there - things you don't even think could be a job.”
“We don't have to know what we want to do for a job and that we might change our minds to something totally
different”

“We leamnt to try new things and to be braver. We leamt new skills to help us with secondary school”,
“The entomologist was fascinating and we loved exploring her workshop and seeing all the. different insects. 1 really
enjoyed talking to Sophie Harker and asking her questions. She was engaging.”

“We leamt about different careers and jobs. We learnt more about science.”

Financial review

Most of the Academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)/Department of
Education (DfE) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants
received from the ESFA/DE during the year ended 31 August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as
restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA/DTE. In accordance. with the Accounting -and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Pratice, *Accounting Activities by Charities’ (SORP), such
grants are shown In the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income In the fixed asset fund. The restricted
fixed .asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation. charges over the éxpected useful life of the assels
concerned. In addition, funds are received from various activities carried out to generate funds, such as any running
costs of the Academy not met by restricted grants. Any surplus is camied forward as an unrestricted fund in the
balance sheet.

DFE income increased from £11,574,047 to £14,910,240; this is due to the full year impact of Redwell Primary
school joining the trust and the new supplementary grant funding. Covid support of £155,426 in the previous year
was £0. Local autherity income decreased frem £515,555 to £445,568 in year.

Unrestricted income decreased in the year from £196,898 to £124,496 in the current year.

Total expenditure increased from £1 4,302,099 to £18,503,082.

The trusts contribution to CIF projects in the current period was £182,890 with CIF grants received being
£1,393,936 (includes £308,884 of unspent capital grants at the year end).

The total unrestricted funds carried forward for the current year are £nil.

The sports and leisure facility at Manor Sports college has recovered well after two years of disruptions as a resuit
of covid. MSL has also contributed to the community by Introducing summer camps available to all NET schools in
the Raunds area.

Catering income has recovered but still posted an overall loss in the year. The Trust has focussed on bringing our
other schools under the Manor catering provision and by the start of September 22 it supplied 7 out of the 8 schools
in NET. This will bring financial benefit in 22/23 but will also ensure the best possible quality of food to all students
which is especially important to our families facing economic hardship.
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Reserves policy

The Trustees regularly review the level of reserves. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. It is the policy of the
Trustees to maintain free reserves at a level which ensures that all management and administrative costs can be
met throughout the year.

The Trustees have previously determined that the approximate leve! of free reserves should be £0.5m in order to
provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion
to deal with contingencies.

During the 2017/18 financial year, the Trustees agreed to a temporary reduction to the level of free reserves from
£0.5m to £0.2m during a period where lagged funding was having an adverse impact on reserves.

The Trustees have committed to regularly review the reserves policy in light of the current financial outturn of the
Trust.

Details of Fixed Asset and Pension Reserves are shown in Note 20.

Investment policy

The Trust does not hold any investments other than cash at bank and its initial £1 investment in its subsidiary
undertaking, Manor Sports and Leisure Ltd. Where funds allow, the Trustees agree to transfer money to interest
bearing deposit accounts for a limited period.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Trustees have a duty to identify and review the risks to which the charity is exposed and to ensure appropriate
controls are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud and error.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which thé Academy Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy Trust, and its finances. The Trustees
have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Academy Trust faces, especially in the operational
areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and Academy trips) and in relation to the control of
finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and visitors,
supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk.

Where significant financial risk stifl remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.

The Academy Trust has an effective system of intemnal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

The Trustees regularly review the risks faced by the Academy Trust and have completed a “Risk Map” to identify the
critical areas of concern. This has been taken down to school leadership level with relevant feedback and
involvement from Principals. As far as possible the Trustees have put in place management controls to minimise/
mitigate risks.

As a result of an A&R subcommittee review during the current year the Trustees consider the following items are the
principal risks facing the Trust:

1. Financial and budget control

2, Estates H&S management with reduced budget situation
3. Cyber security

Fundraising

The Trust's Academies occasionally engage in fundraising activities, éither for a specific venture such as an
overseas trip of a leisure activity, or to. support a charitable event, especially nationally recognised events such as
Children in Need or Comic Relief. Funds raised through such appeals are purely expended on assotiated costs in
the case of trips and activities or donated in full to the appropriate charity.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

2022 2021
Energy consumption kWh kWh
Aggregate of energy consumption in the year 367,993 310,043
2022 2021
Emissions of CO2 equivalent metric tonnes metric tonnes
Scope 1 - direct emissions
- Gas combustion 449.00 381.22
- Fuel consumed for owned transport 3.60 3.81
452.60 385.03
Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased 289.50 231.20
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions
- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the academy trust 10.70 8.20
Total gross emissions 752.80 624.43
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.25 0.22

Quantification and reporting methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting. Protecol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken fo improve energy efficiency
» Ongoing energy monitoring using analytics to reduce overall consumption
+ |nstallation of LED lightings.
« Further thermal upgrades have continued to includes roof insulation and
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Pians for future periods

The Nene Education Trust has compiled a Strategic Development Plan outlining the goals and targets of the Trust
over the period 2021-2026.

The new plan shares and defines the vision of Trustees, expanding on the Trust's strategic objectives, defining key
goals and performance measures and builds on individual Academy successes already achieved. The yision is to

ensure that our children and young people are challenged continually fo complete their education successfully, to
develop self-confidence and self-esteem and to be proactive in determining their career pathway.

Our Mission (Strategic Intent):

Raising aspirations and developing character is at the hearl of everything we do within our schools to enable each
‘young person to-achieve highly and be successful in life, contributing back to the world we live in. Throughout their
educational journey in the Nene Education Trust, we ‘aim to develop all our learners within a positive enviréiiment
for learning, along with opportunities to develop their spiritual and moral compass so that they grow with integrity.

Through a set of shared principles, we will develop a mult-academy trust of highly effective: and sustainable
schools. As a group of schools working in collaboration as one, we will improve and maintain high educational
standards in order to advance education for the public benefit.

Our Strategic Intent will be achiaved by delivering the Trust Strategic Plan 2021/26 through the 6 key areas:

Educational Excellence
School improvement
Developmental Organisation
Infrastructure

Our Wellness

Collective Responsibility

Our shared principles are the DNA running through all we do in creating the culture of our successful multi-academy
trust.

* People first

« Working together

» Outward facing and ambitious
» Autonomy

s Celebrating our achievement

“The Trust has completed the ceniralisation of Finance, Human Resources, Estates and ICT this year The aim
continues to focus upon achieving the highest quality service that delivers consistently high outcomes in all these
areas As there were no external funding streams. available (such as TCAF ) the Central costs of implementing these
changes have had to be met from GAG income and reserves.

Central operations and systems development

« The central team has continued to grow capacity during the year with further HR professional staff being
employed to support the COO with the successful réstructures during the year and TUPE of catering staff.
This has also allowed more robust management of employee relations cases and a significant increase in
other support to the schools in other areas such as absence management.

+ This in turn has allowed the CEO 1o focus on the Trust's wider strategy and engagement in the local area.

« The Access platform started to operate in Sept 21 and is now In use across the Trust,

« The Arbor MIS platform went live on September st 2021 with Manor School transferring to the platform in
April 2022.The visibility of information for ‘each school has been vital for the school improvement team to
understand and challenge the performance of each school.
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The Parago estales management platform was introduced during the year under review — this is proving to be a
useful tool in managing maintenance tickets in all schools as well as providing a register for the management of all
assets and contracts.

Long-term Growth , ) ,
The aim over the next fivé years is to contiriue to-grow at a sustainable pace, identifying schools that offer a cultural
fit, but that can also add value to the network. Longer-term, the aim Is to create two.or three-geographical hubs
across. the towns within North Northamptonshire, grewing an optimum size of approximately 6,000 pupils. The Trust
now also has a development centre offering independerit education-based training to teaching professionals across’
North Nerthamptonshire. It is also a strategic and delivery pariner of the Northamptonshire Teaching School Hub
and Is currently delivering NPQ training and ECF training to cohorts of teachers from-across the region.

Auditor

In so far as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which thé charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought fo have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on . %...9¢%....2:%% and signed on its behalf by

.............. o
A Laughton
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Nene Education Trust has an effective
arid appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system Is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. '

The board of trustées has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive. Officer, a$ accounting
officer, ‘for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety .and good finangial
management :and in agcordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between Nene Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible
for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

A Laughton (Chair of Trustees)

M Busby

C Hill (Chief Executive Officer)

M Spinks-Wilson

N Bonser-Ward

N Wilson

R Hargrave (Resigned 31 August 2022)

S Atkins (Diocesan corporate director) (Resigned 18 July 2022)
Dr R Whittaker (Diocesan corporate director)
G Rose (Resigned 31 January 2022)

K Duncan-Banerjee

E Nuttall

P French (Appointed 20 July 2022)

J Weedon (Appointed 1 September 2022)

OO = bW D
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Georgina Rose resignad in January 2022 and a recruitment exercise was carried out in Summer 2022 to recruit a
replacément for that position. Jenna Weedon was appointed to reflect the skills audit review requirement for
someone with both local community knowledge and professional marketing skills' and experience. Jenna also fills
the requirement of parental representation on the Board. Her appointment commenced on 1 September 2022.

The first term of office for 4 trustees came to an end in Summer 2022, but all expressed the wish to be reappointed:
3 as trustees: Anthony Laughton, Nina Wilson, Nathanael Bonser-Ward. All were reappointed by the Members.
Russell Hargrave changed role from trustee to member. Stephen Atkins was replaced as Diocesan Director by Peter
French.

An external review of Governance was carried out by Sir David Carter in May 2022 and the findings were
incorporated into the Trust strategic priorities and addressed by the Board as part of the Trust risk mapping. One of
the priority areas was thie review of local goveinance that was carried out in Summer 2022 which ensured the focus
.of Local Advisory Boards , to be named Local Committees from September 2022, was on developing feedback
loops from school and community level into the Trust Board and a more ambassadorial rather than monitoring role.

This was set out in the updatéd Scheme of Delegation for 2022-23.

-23-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The review of local governance also identified risks and weaknesses in the existing delegated responsibilities to
local governing bodies (Local Advisory Boards) for health andl safety and safeguarding. For 2022-23 '3 new Trust
Safeguarding Trustee role has been created and they will chair a Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board which
will provide a more rigorous challenge to ‘safeguarding in the Trust, This wiill complement the Trust Safeguarding
Lead role at executive level that was created in September 2021. Health and Safety will be managed at executive
level by a Health and Safety Working group that will report to the Trust Audit and Risk Committee.

The Trust’s emphasis on the mental health and wellbeing of its staff and students will be monitored at local
governing body level by local committee members from September 2022.

The Education Standards Committee will continue fo focus in 2022-23 on the impact of the Trust's curriculum and
school improvement focus on the outcomes for students.

Conflicts of interest

Nene Education Trust maintains a Register. of interests which is updated annually by &ll levels of governance -and
staff. The registers for governance are published on the Trust website. Declarations of interest are always sought at
the start-of -every Trust Board and Committee meeting, including Local Committee Meetings. If there were any
interest declared the individual would absent themselves from any discussions or voting.

Govermnance reviews

An external review of Governance. was carried out by Sir David Carter In May 2022 and the findings were
incorporated into the Trust strategic priorities and addressed by the Board as part-of the Trust risk mapping. One of.
the priority areas was the review of local governance that was carried out in Summer 2022 which ensured the focus
of Local Advisory Boards, to be named Local Commitiees from September 2022, was on developing feedback loops
from school and eommunity level into the Trust Board and a more ambassadorial rather than monitoring role. This

was set out in the updated Scheme of Delegation for 2022-23.

The review of local governance élso identified risks and weaknesses in the existing delegated responsibilities to
local govermning bodies (Local Advisory. Boards).for health and safety and safeguarding. For 2022-23°a new Trust
Safeguarding Trustee role has been created and they will chair a Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board which
will provide a more rigorous challenge to safequarding in the Trust, This will complement the Trust Safeguarding
Lead role at executive level that was created in September 2021. Health and Safety will be managed at executive
level by a Health and Safety Working group that will report to the Trust Audit and Risk Committee.

In July 2022 the Trust were selected by the ESFA for a.governance and compliance review against the academy
handbook. This review was very successful as the trust were found to be “well on their way to full compliance with
the academy handbook”.

Plans for 2022-23

In2021-22 the Trust Board undertook an internal self-review based upon The CST's Assurance framework. External
challenge to this internal review was given by Sir David Carter to ensure that the Trust Board had an outward facing
sector specific comparison. In particular this review had a significant influence of the work achieved on the changes
to the local gavernance structures implemented in September 2022.

The review reinforced that the direction of travel in 21-22 should continue in 22-23 with a focus upon:

1. The education sub-committee to development a focus on scrutiny of standards as student outcomes
become reliable again after the years of uncertainty caused by covid.
2. Embed the new local committee approach during 22-23 with stakeholder feedback driving the vehicle of
work undertaken in the following areas:
a. The experience of children in each of the schools
b. The experience of staff who work in the schools
¢. The experience of parents, carers and families who choose to send their children to your schools
d. The role of the local committee as an ambassador in their community for the trust.
3. Introduction of a new Safeguarding Committee of the Trust Board.
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Finance Commiittee

The finance & resources commitiee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. The Committee is responsible
for advising the Board on matters relating to the Trust’s finance arrangements, and aid the Board to ensure sound
management of the Trust's finances and resources, including proper planning, monitoring and probity. The Finance
& Resources Committee is responsible to the Trust Board. The Committee’s Terms of Reference are agreed and
adopted by the Board and can only be amended with the approval of the Board.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustees Meetings attended QOut of possible

A Laughton (Chair of Trustees)

C Hill {Chief Executive Officer)

N Bonser-Ward

R Hargrave (Resigned 31 August 2022)

Dr R Whittaker (Diocesan corporate director)
K Duncan-Banerjee

AR AAWN
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Audit committee

The audit committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. The main purposes are to ensure a
comprehensive audit programme is undertaken to review the Risk Map making recommendations and ensuring
there is a robust system of intemal controls in place. The Audit Committee makes recommendations to the board of
directors as set out in the Terms of Reference which is reviewed annually.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
M Busby 4 4
C Hill (Chief Executive Officer) 4 4
M Spinks-Wilson 4 4
N Bonser-Ward 3 4
G Rose (Resigned 31 January 2022) 1 2

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Head has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the use
of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reporis to the board of Truslees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:

1. Student Attainment

Our headline figures earlier in this report. We continue to be immensely proud of all the work and achievements of
our students, especially after such a difficult and disrupted year. Our teachers have worked tirelessly to ensure
students are ail able to progress, and we look forward to seeing what they will achieve in the future.
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2. Ensuring the operation of the Trust demonstrates good value for money and efficient and effective use of
resources.

High value coniracls are assessed against the marketplace on a regular basis to ensure that long term contracts,
anything over three years in duration, remain competitive. For purchases above. £10,000 but below the tender limit,
of £25,000, 3 quotes are required.

The Trust has undertaken thorough reviews of its contracts and their suppliers. These continue to lead to savings
and cost efficiencies in areas throughout the Trust

The Trust now produces monthly KPI's on staff costs per setting and this is reviewed by the senior executive on a
monthly basis alongside the information they receive on contact ratios.
This information also helps to-review the effectiveness of leadership-against the cost by setting.

Marketing

A marketing company was appointed in 20-21 to work with the Trust on following areas
» Communicate the activities of the schools to current and prospective parents
+ Showcase to the wider community the benefits of being part of NET
« As this focus has now been embedded within the organisation, the contract has ceased on 31.12.22

Review of Catering Provision in all Schools

« The Manor Catering provision has extended its reach during 2021-22 and by the end of the year under
review covered 7 (Previous year 4) schools in the Trust Staff from 3 external suppliers were TUPED to the
Trust .

» The quality of food served has improved markedly and in 22-23 take up of school meals across the trust
has risen by ever 20%

» This will also save the Trust paying external suppliers for this service.

« The Trust expects the service to break even during the year against a cost of xx in the previous year.

Central Office
« The trust leased a new central office towards the end of the year, merging 3 different facilities as a result.
The move has created efficiencies of working , with all colleagues being in one place and it also houses the
training facility of 5Wells which joined the Trust at the start of the academic year.
« This allowed the frust to save at least one head count and further efficiencies will result as reviews are
undertaken.

Central services
The Trust successfully moved to an intemal HR information service and Payroll provision in September 2021.
This removed the need for an external bureau provision , which ensured

« a better service to staff and

« better information for line managers

s better controls over payroll payments

The Trust now has a good control of pension payments and can help colleagues understand their pension options in
a more timely manner.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk lo a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achiave policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasoriable and nol absolute assurance
of effactiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise.
the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place In Nerie Edueation Trust for the period 1 September 2021 fo 31
August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
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Capacity to handle risk

The board of frustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. Thie bivard of trustees is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for ideplifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's
significant risks that has been in place-for the pefiod 1-September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of
:approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

« regular reviews by the finance & resources committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial and other performance,

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

« identification and management of risks.

The trustees have identified a range of internal audit functions that align to the risks identified during 2021-22 and
have received internal audit feedback on the following areas from a range of professional organisations.

Safeguarding

GDPR

School Improvement judgements

Trust Review of leadership and governance
Financial and Probity — Executive Pay
Payroll Process Audit

SCR Process Audit

IT and Cyber Security Reviews and Audits
Health and Safety Audits

This demonstrates that trustees are considering the view of risk being a wider remit than just finances.

The Trust board considered the options around internal .audit reports and decided that a bought-in internal audit
service from a firm, other organisation or individual with professional indemnity insurance was the appropriate action
and after tender appointed Maclntyre Hudson to undertake this work.

The impact of the internal audit work undertaken in 21-22 saw significant improvements in controls and accuracy of
the balance sheet and implementation of in-house payroll processes.

For the last two years a wide range of other internal audit functions over and above financial control have been
undertaken by other external bodies in regards to GDPR, Safeguarding, Subject reviews and health and safety.

An annual internal audit report encompassing all of the various strands is presented each year to A&R committee.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Macintyre Hudson as the internal auditor. The role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a
range of checks on the Academy’s financial systems. On a termly basis the Audit Committee reperts to the board of
Trustees on the operation of the system of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financial
responsibilities.
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Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer the Head has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

= the work noted above;

« the work of the Audit Committes;

= the work of the external auditor;

« the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on ‘and signed on its behalf by:
L a4 /]
| [ ( . — — —
R VPN
A Laughton Hill
Chair of Trustees Chief Executive Officer
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As accounting officer of Nene Education Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board
of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agericy (ESFA) of material irreguiarity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the:academy trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due fegard to the requirements of the Academy TrustHandbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material imegular or improper use
of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the ierms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity; impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to

date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

et~ — C -HILe

C Hill
Accounting Officer
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The trustees (who are also the directors of Nene Education Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the truslees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Unitad Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and {air view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its Incoming resources and application of resources, Including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

s prepare the accounts on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company wili continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible far ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charltable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

4.4 A
{ P

A (/\ ,/("'“‘*f
A Laughtar
Chalr of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NENE EDUCATION
TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Nene Education Trust for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
significant accounting policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their préparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland’ {United ‘Kingdom Generally Accapted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We bslieve that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw your attention to note 1.2 'Going concern' which indicates that the Trust is in an overall deficit for free
resarves as at 31 August 2022. This indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thereon. The trustess are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Qur opinion on the accounts does not cover the ather information and, except to the extent ctherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our résponsibility is. to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees’ report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation
of the accounts and for béing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such Internal control as the
trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the acadery
trust's abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis.of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but isnot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will ‘always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

Extent to which the audit was conslderéd capable of detécting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, aré instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. Wé. design procedures in
tine with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council's website, to detect material

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the entily, its activities, its control -environmenl, and likely fulure
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framewdrk applicable and how the entity is complying
with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive ta those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This hcludes

consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.
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in response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed
procedures which included:

« Enquiry of senior leadership, Governors/Trusteies and those charged with governance around actual and
potential litigation and claims.as well as actual, ‘suspected and alleged fraud;

- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governanee;

+ Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have, a direct material
effect on the financial staternents ar the operations .of the eempany through enquiry and inspection;

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including compliance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency;

« Performing audit work over the recognition of grant income and the allocation of expenditure to funds;

« Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accouriting estimates for indicators of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements. or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional ornissions, miisrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

A further description of our respensibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at; hitp://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report Is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part'18
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matlers we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilily to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

g\m}m &\;Bx S)zw\dl>

Richard Monkhouse (Senior Statutory Auditor) \
for and on behalf of Azets Audit Services \S \2' 7‘ OlL

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Thorpe House
93 Headlands
Kettering
Northamptonshire
United Kingdom
NN15 6BL

-33-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO NENE EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 25 August 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Nene Education Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Nene Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Nene Education Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibllity to anyone other than Nene Education Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Nene Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Nene Education Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 31 October 2015 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial trarisaictions conform to the suthorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagemaent letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on & test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
« Assessment and testing of the internal audit work and reliance placed upon this work for the review of internal
control procedures

s Further testing of the intermal control procedures has been carried out in the followings areas:
» Sample test of delegated authority procedures
s Engquiry and review of transactions with connected parties
» Review of governance procedures including inspection of trustee and relevant board minutes
« Sample test of procurement procedures

« Communication with the accounting officer
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income recgived during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parllament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

At A Seeees

Reporting Accountant
Azets Audit Services
Thorpe House

93 Headlands
Kettering
Northamptonshire
NN15 6BL

United Kingdom

aes: T\ 12} 2022 .
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Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2022 2021
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 26,960 - 1,578,629 1,605,589 188,370
Donations - transfer from local
authority on conversion - - - - 2,426,850
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 534,435 15,355,710 - 15,890,145 12,595,082
Other trading activities S 426,466 - - 426,466 196,898
Investments 6 109 - - 109 81
Total 937,070 15,355,710 1,578,629 17,922,309 15,407,281

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9 1,317,636 16,425,773 786,397 18,529,806 14,302,099
Total 7 1,317,636 16,425,773 786,397 18,529,806 14,302,099
Net income/{expenditure) (329,666) (1,070,063) 792,232 (607,497) 1,105,182
Transfers between funds 20 - (222,210) 222,210 - -

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined

benefit pension schemes 22 - 7,124,000 - 7,424,000 (1,237,000)
Net movement in funds (329,666) 5,831,727 1,014,442 6,516,503 {131,818)
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 329,666 (6,582,867) 24,530,673 18,277,472 18,409,290

Total funds carried forward - (751,140) 25,545,115 24,793,975 18,277,472
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Comparative year information Unrestricted

Year ended 31 August 2021 funds
Notes £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 23,584

Donations - transfer from local authority on

conversion 400,850

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations 4 314,261

Other trading activities 5 196,898

Investments 6 81

Total 935,674

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9 665,084
Total 7 665,084
Net income/(expenditure) 270,590
Transfers between funds 20 11,081

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes 22 -

Net movement in funds 281,671

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 47,995

Total funds carried forward 329,666
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Restricted funds:
General Fixed asset
£ £

- 164,786
(474,000) 2,500,000

12,280,821 -

11,806,821 2,664,786

12,893,148 743,867

12,893,148 743,867

(1,086,327) 1,920,919

(130,981) 119,900

(1,237,000) -

(2,454,308) 2,040,819

(4,128,559) 22,489,854

(6,582,867) 24,530,673

Total
2021
£

188,370
2,426,850

12,595,082
196,898
81

15,407,281

14,302,099

14,302,099

1,105,182

(1,237,000)

(131,818)

18,409,290

18,277,472




NENE EDUCATION TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Stocks

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

signed on their.behalf by:

JII”
L4

A Latightoh?
Chair of Trustees

—
A '

Notes

13

14
16

17

18

22

20

20

2022
£ £
25,230,356
4,950
1,523,504
310,484
1,839,028
(1,586,118)
252,910
25,483,266
(23,291)
25,450,975
(666,000)
24,793,975
25,545,115
(85,140)
(666,000)
24,793,975
24,793,975

2021

£

4,950
1,059,432
430,454

1,494,836

(1,125,679)

£

24,530,673

369,157

24,899,830

(32,358)

24,867,472
(6.590,000)

18,277,472

24,530,673
7,133
{6,590,000)
17,947,806
329,666

18,277,472

........

Company registration number 07816548
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities 23
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term loan

Repayment of other loan

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2022
£ £
(203,561)
(203,561)
109
1,578,629
(1,486,080)
92,658
(9,067)
(9,067)
(119,970)
430,454
310,484

-309-

2021

81
159,953
4,833

(182,824)
4,000

595

(502,470)
400,850

(101,620)

(13,957)

595

(114,982)

545436

430,454




NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies

Nene Education Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given on
page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the trustees' report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting ‘Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is pound sterling.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use. of going concern is appropriate, ie- whether there are any 'material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to coritinue as a golng concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts.

As of 31 August 2022, the Academy Trust has net current assets of £252,910, incuited an operating deficit in
the year of £607,497 (including depreciation and LGPS pension costs), has a eash balance of £310,484 and
a deficit camry forward on free reserves of £85,140.

The Trustees have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis. The Trust currently has a
net current asset position and cash on hand at bank to meet current liabilities as they fall due, which supports
the ongoing adoption of the Going Concern basis of accounts preparation. However, current glabal volatility
places the finances of the Trust under significant pressure as costs escalate beyond long-term averages and
expectations. Unfunded and backdated pay rises have caused the overall position of the Trust to move from a
surplus to a deficit position and the Trust is continuing to focus on preparing balanced budgets and realising
cost savings to bring the Trust's reserves back to a surplus pesition. The mitigating actions mentioned in the
going concern section of the Trustees Reporl reflect that management are focused on this and demonstrate
that the leadership of the Trust has a clear plan to move-the trust back to a surplus position over the coming
year and in-line with its reserves policy in the longer-term.. '

Should there be any deterioration in the Academy Trust's financial position in the future, the Trustees would
discuss with the ESFA the requirement for advance funding to secure the Academy Trust's position.

Bearing the above in mind, the management and Trustees are confident that the Academy has adequate
resources to continue in opetational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the financial
statements have been prepared on a golng concern basis.

Where the Trust is no longer a going concern, adjustments may be required to the carrying value of assets,
provision would also be required for the future liabllities arising as a consequence of the Trust ceasing
business and assets and liabilities currently classified as non-current would be reclassified as current.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements contain information about Nene Education Trust as an individual charitable company
and do not contain consolidated financial information as a parent of a group. In the trustees' opinion the
results of the subsidiary are not material to ar understanding of the academy trust's financial statements as in
accordance with S405(2) of Companies Act 2006.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1

14

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies (Continued)

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

ran

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitiement 1o the income and its recognition is defefred and included in creditors as
deferred income unilil the performancé-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
recelvable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restrictéd fixed asset fund, Capital grants are
recognised when there is entiléement and. are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship Income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other ingome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated aoods, facilities-and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stoek and 'Income from
other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised.as ‘Income from other trading activities’, Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they
are sold. This income is recognised within ‘income from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amourit is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the asademy trust's accounting policies.

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the
transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. Income- equal to the net assets transferred is
recognised within donations and capital grant income.
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1

15

1.6

Accounting policies (Continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertakirig éach activity, Direct costs attributable lo a single
activity are allocated directly to that acfivity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one acfivity and
stipport costs ‘which are not atiributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activifies
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acqunred with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private. séctor, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement ©f financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

The academy trust has a legal agreement for the use of the land and buildings under a church supplemental
agreement. These are rolling agreements with a minimum two years written naotice period for termination, no
such notice has been given at the date of signing the accounts.

In .accordance with the accounting treatment set out by the Academies Accounts Direction, the land and
buildings associated with Redwell Primary School have been included as an asset in the financial statements,
based on a full market value at the date of conversion.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings 2% of cost

Property Improvements 10% of cost
Computer equipment 25% of cost
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 10% of cost

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on those assets is not charged until
they are brought into use.



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Accounting policies {Continued)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value. of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of &conoinic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the séttiement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments

The academy trust's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Manor Sports and Leisure Limited, is
included in the balance sheet at cost less any impairment. There is no readily available market value for this
subsidiary and the cost of a valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Einancial asseis
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

i cial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stock
Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving
stock.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
calegories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.
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113

1.14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Pensions benefits

Retirement bensfits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{TPS!) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over

employses' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level

percantage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a projected unit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-
employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers, Consequently, the TPS is treated
as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes-and the contributions are recognised inthe period
to which they relate. S

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administeréd funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and iabilities
are measuréd on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarlai valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance Sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs d@nd the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, setflements and curlailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the nét defined benefit liabjiity/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises thie interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual retum on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immadiately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unresfricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprisé all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/

.donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experierice and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounti i d assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The gstimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material .adjustment lo the carrying amounts ef assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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2

Critical accounting estimates and areas of Judgement (Continued)

The présent value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability, Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 ‘March 2019
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Capital grants - 1,578,629 1,578,629 159,953
QOther donations 26,960 - 26,960 28,417
26,960 1,578,629 1,605,589 188,370
Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) - 13,543,003 13,543,003 10,242,157
Other DfE/ESFA grants:
- UIFSM - 162,684 162,684 158,697
- Pupil premium - 676,214 676,214 500,530
- PE and sport premium - 128,520 128,520 106,680
- Rates - 26,536 26,536 53,825
- Teachers pension grant - 31,744 31,744 360,555
- Teachers pay grant - 11,202 11,202 126,603

- Others - 256,480 256,480 25,000

- 14,836,383 14,836,383 11,574,047

Other government grants

Local authority grants - 519,327 519,327 515,665
COVID-19 additional funding

DfE/ESFA

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - - 155,426
Other incoming resources 534,435 - 534,435 350,054

Total funding 534,435 15,355,710 15,890,145 12,595,082

- 45-



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4 Funding for the academy trust's charitable activitles

(Continued)

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in
response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above.

5 Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Other income

6 Investment income

Short term deposits

7 Expenditure

Staff costs
£

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs

- Allocated support costs

11,214,714
3,101,315

14,316,026

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

£ £

39,397 -
270,071 -
116,998 -
426,466 -
Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

£ £

109 -

Non-pay expenditure

Premises Other
£ £
- 1,207,884
1,672,916 1,332,980
1,672,916 2,540,864

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Fees payable to auditor for:

- Audit
- Other services

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability
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Total
2022
£

39,397
270,071
116,998
426,466

Total
2022

108

Total
2022

12,422,595
6,107,211

18,529,806

2022
£

15,300
6,200
60,045
786,397

118,000

Total
2021
£

27,224
96,886
72,788

196,898

Total
2021

a1

Total
2021

9,613,860
4,788,239

14,302,099

2021
£

13,000
8,790
71,129
639,848
(1,848)
78,000
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8 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Back office functions

« Accounting services
Human resources
Payroll
ICT services
Facilities advisory
Catering management
Insurance services
Staff cover
Health and safety audits
Administration support

Teaching and learning

» Principal - leadership and management
Performing ‘arts support across all schools
Specialist PE teaching
Specialist music support
Safeguarding suppert
SENCO support

The academy trust charges for these services as a percentage of funding. For the year ended 31 August

2022, the charges were based on 6% (2021 - 7%) of school funding.

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2022

£
Redwell Primary School 151,859
Manor School Sports College 323,312
St Peters CofE Academy 50,644
Stanwick Primary School 48,655
Windmill Primary School 100,320
Newton Road School 69,598
Woodford Church of England Primary School 27,489
Raunds Park Infants School 35,734

807,611

9 Charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds 2022
£ £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 988,906 11,433,689 12,422,595
Support costs
Educational operations 328,730 5,778,481 6,107,211

1,317,636 17,212,170 18,529,806
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2021
£

28,905
354,046
49,823
57,587
122,170
84,344
30,277
42,651

769,803

Total
2021
£

9.513,860

4,788,239

14,302,089
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9 Charitable activities (Continued)
2022 2021
£ £

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 3,101,315 2,381,190
Depreciation and (profit)loss on disposal 786,397 638,000
Technology costs 266,429 211,903
Premises costs 886,519 846,611
Legal costs 168,975 110,931
Other support costs 873,431 577,814
Governance costs 24,145 21,790

6,107,211 4,788,239

10 Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2022 2021
£ £
Wages and salaries 9,988,578 7,863,516
Social security costs 782,363 687,728
Pension costs 3,229,244 2,210,200
Staff costs - employees 14,000,185 10,761,444
Agency staff costs 315,841 132,400

Staff restructuring costs - 15,000

14,316,026 10,908,844
Staff development and other staff costs 35,674 -

Total staff expenditure 14,351,700 10,908,844

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments - 15,000



NENE EDUCATION TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

10

Staff {Continued)

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows;

2022 2021
Number Number
Teachers 166 145
Administration and support 261 196
Management 12 10
439 351

The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:
2022 2021
Number Number
Teachers 147 127
Administration and support 180 115
Management 12 9
339 251

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2022 2021

Number Number

£60,000 - £70,000 4 4
£70,001 - £80,000 2 -
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 -
£100,001 - £110,000 - 1
£110,001 - £120,000 1 -
£130,001 - £140,000 - 1

Please note in 2021 one member of staff in the pay range £130,000 - £140,000 includes severance, pay in
lieu of notice and redundancy pay. With normalised annual pay this would have fallen into the range of
£100,000 - £110,000.

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the academy trust was £1,053,760 (2021; £922,874).
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M

12

13

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The Head and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of Head and staff members under their contracts of employment, and notin
respect of their services as frustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

C Hill (CEOQ):
* Remuneration £115,000 - £420,000 (2021: £100,000 - £105,000)
* Employer's pension contributions £25,000 - £30,000 (2021: £20,000 - £25,000)

During the year, travel and subsistence payments totalling £385 (2021: £257) were reimbursed or paid directly
to 1 trustee (2021: 2 trustees).

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out within the related parties note.
Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the costs of the
insurance forms part of the overall insurance cost for the Academy Trust.

Tangible fixed assets

Land and Property Computer  Fixtures, Total
buildings improvements equipment fittings &
equipment
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2021 25,623,128 1,657,268 223,464 479,780 27,983,640
Additions - 1,396,356 38,191 51,633 1,486,080
At 31 August 2022 25,623,128 3,063,624 261,655 531,313 29,469,720
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 2,787,584 447,607 113,856 103,920 3,452,967
Charge for the year 468,004 241,440 25,732 51,221 786,397
At 31 August 2022 3,255,588 689,047 139,588 155,141 4,239,364
Net book value
At 31 August 2022 22,367,540 2,364,577 122,067 376,172 25,230,356
At 31 August 2021 22,835,544 1,209,661 109,608 375,860 24,530,673
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13 Tangible fixed assets (Continued)

The net book value of Jand and buildings comprises:

2022 2021

£ £

Freeholds 14,916,336 15,216,202
Long leaseholds (over 50 years) 7,451,204 7,619,342

22,367,540 22,835,544

14 Stocks
2022 2021
£ £
Catering stock 4,950 4,950
15 Fixed asset investments
Total
Historical cost:
At 31 August 2022 1
At 31 August 2021 1
Holdings of more than 20%
The company holds more than 20% of the share capital of the following companies:
Company Country of registration or Shares held
Incorporation
Class %
Subsidiary undertakings
Manor Sports and Leisure England and Wales Ordinary 100

Limited

The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these undertakings for the last
relevant financial year were as follows:

Capital and Profit/(loss) for the year

reserves
Principal activities £ £

Manor Sports and Leisure Hire of sports and business

Limited facilities 21,117 27,758
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16

17

18

Debtors

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
VAT recoverable

Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Government loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Govemment loans

Analysis of loans

Not wholly repayable within five years by instalments
Wholly repayable within five years

Less: included in current liabilities

Amounts included above

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less

Due in more than one year but not more than two years

Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in more than five ysars
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32,358

2022 2021
£ £

1,268 630
54,231 37,580
69,098 78,767
1,398,997 942,455
1,623,594 1,059,432
2022 2021

£ £

9,067 9,067
555,924 463,444
211,148 226,448
241,991 234,659
567,988 192,061
1,586,118 1,125,679
2022 2021

£ £

23,291 32,358
2022 2021

£ £

- 658

32,358 40,767
32,358 41,425
(9,067) (9,067)
23,291 32,358
9,067 9.067
9,067 9,067
14,224 22,633

- 658

41,425
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18

19

20

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

{Continued)

Included within other creditors are Salix loans totalling £32,358 (2021: £41,425). The Salix loans are interest
free and repayable in six-monthly instaiments over eight years.

Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:

Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2021

Released from previous years

Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2022

2022
£

197,522

92,915
(92,915)
197,522

197,622

2021
£

92,915

184,913
(184,913)
92,915

92,915

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for rates relief, free
school meals and school trips for the 2021/22 academic year.

Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {(GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion
DfE group capital grants

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 September
2021

(6,590,000)

{6,582,867)

24,530,673

24,530,673

17,947,806

329,686

18,277,472

Income Expenditure

£ £
13,543,003 (13,413,066)
162,684 (162,684)
676,214 (676,214)
454,482 (454,482)
519,327 (519,327)
- (1,200,000}

16,355,710 (16,425,773
- (786,397)

1,578,629 -
1,578,629 (786,397)
16,934,339 (17,212,170)
987,970 (1,317,636)
17,922,309  (18,529,806)
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Gains,
losses and
transfers

£

(222,210)

7.124,000

6,901,790

1,486,080
(1,263,870)

222,210

7,124,00

7,124,000

Balance at
31 August
2022

£

(85,140)

(666,000)

(751,140)

25,230,356
314,759

25,545,115

24,793,975

24,793,975
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds represent unspent General Annual Grant (GAG), which must be used for the normal
recurring costs of the academy trust together with other restricted general funds.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to any restriction
on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

During the period, a transfer of £222,210 was made from restricted general funds to restricted fixed asset
funds in respect of capital expenditure in the period funded from restricted general income.

The above funds all represent funding received less specific costs relating to each activity during the year,
The activities are generally government funded and are all closely associated with the educational objectives
of the academy trust.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds represent resources which have been applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funder together with cash resources still to be expended.

Restricted Pension Reserve Funds represent the academy trust's share of the assets and liabilities of the
Local Government Pension Scheme.
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Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion

DfE group capital grants
Private sector capital
sponsorship

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 September
2020 Income
£ £
138,441 10,242,157
- 158,697
- 500,530
- 672,663
- 670,981
- 35,793
(4,267,000) (474,000)
(4,128,559) 11,806,821
22,489,854 2,500,000
- 159,953
- 4,833
22,489,854 2,664,786
18,361,295 14,471,607
47,995 935,674
15,407,281

18,409,290

{Continued)

Galns, Balance at

{osses and 31 August

Expenditure transfers 2021
£ £ £
(10,242,484) (130,981) 7,133
(158,697) - -
(500,530) - -
(672,663) - -
(670,981) - -
(35,793) - -
(612,000)  (1,237,000)  (6,530,000)
(12,893,148)  (1,367,981) (6,582,867)
(639,848) 180,667 24,530,673
(104,019) (55,934) -

- (4,833) -

(743,867) 118,900 24,530,673
(13,637,015)  (1,248,081) 17,947,806
(665,084) 11,081 329,666

(14,302,099)

(1,237,000)

18,277,472
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Funds

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:

Redwell Primary School

Manor School Sports College

St Peters CofE Academy

Stanwick Primary School

Windmill Primary School

Newton Road School

Wooadford Church of England Primary School
Raunds Park Infants School

Central services

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds
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2022
£

302,179
(70,235)
(37,385)
(9.494)
(112,440)
(144,282)
134,012
24,996
(172,491)

(85,140)

25,545,115
(666,000)

24,793,975

(Continued)

2021
£

366,224
(65,220)
14,758
(23.401)
7,305
(83,181)
106,741
169,634
(156,061)

336,799

24,530,673
(6,590,000)

18,277,472
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20 Funds (Continued)

The following schools showed a carried forward deficit at 31 August 2022:
* Manor School Sports College
* Newton Road Schoo!
* St Peters CofE Academy
* Windmill Primary School
* Central services

The reason for the schools being in deficit are:

In the current year two schools (Manor and Newton Road) remain in a cumulative deficit and two schools (ST
Peters and Windmill) have fallen into this category,

Manor Schaol Sports College - In year 21-22 was a balanced year although we were not able to recover any
deficit this year.

Newton Road School - The deficit increased mainly due to contributions to capital projects and staffing costs

which were over budget. This school continues to be affected negatively by covid absernteeism amongst staff
which resulted in significant supply costs.

St Peters CofE Academy - This deficit was caused by an overspend on professional services,

Stanwick Primary School - The school improved their cumulative deficit position this year and are nearing the
break even point due to a 22/23 restructure.

Windmill Primary School - The deficit was created by. the expense surrounding the leadership team changes

and therefore some duplication of costs. A long term absence cost also impacted on the leadership team.

Central services - The costs for the Trust included one off relocation costs which led to the deficit against
budget.

Mitigating Actlons to address and recover the reserves position across the trust:
* Re-budgeting to align reality to changed starting position

Restructure of leadership in some schools and HR function

Freeze on capital spend

Freeze on recruitment — unless approved by CEQ

More rigorous and timely management accounts/reporting

Deficit recovery plan built into re-budget

Move to GAG pooling budget model

Exec team restructure to increase focus on finance through new CFO

2nd SRMA 'proactive’ review was undertaken in Nov'22

Many of these actions were already being undertaken prior to the end of year accounts process due to the
pressures caused by the unfunded pay increases. Therefore the Trust Board are confident that the trust will
return to a surplus position overall by the end of 22-23.
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Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support  Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Redwell Primary School 1,928,993 213,750 144,346 395,398 2,682,487 228,078
Manor School Sports
College 4,061,242 298,975 367,820 847,694 5575,731 5,690,891
St Peters CofE Academy 659,580 74,892 55,288 87,862 877,622 929,445
Stanwick Primary School 581,765 85,033 36,839 116,082 819,719 843,546
Windmill Primary School 1,359,272 190,643 91,138 182,550 1,823,603 1,952,021
Newton Road School 993,945 145,204 53,395 149,927 1,342,471 1 434,328
Woodford Church of
England Primary School 384,650 45,686 32,875 62,491 525,702 490,230
Raunds Park Infants
School 557,284 41,418 27,676 79,716 706,094 584,887
Central services 723,654 2,005,714 38,519 622,093 3,389,980 1 ,508,825
11,250,385 3,101,315 847,896 2,543,813 17,743,409 13,662,251
21  Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 25,230,356 25,230,356
Current assets - 1,524,269 314,759 1.839,028
Current liabilities - (1,586,118) - {1,586,118)
Non-current liabilities - (23,291) - (23,291)
Pension scheme liability - {666,000) - (666,000)
Total net assets - (751,140) 25,545,115

24,793,975
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22

Analysis of net assets betDeen funds (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted fundsO Total

Funds Teneral Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are
represented by[]

Tangible fixed assets - 24530673 24,530,673

Current assets 1,487,703 7,133 - 1,494,836
Current liabilities (1,125,679) - - (1,125,679)
Non-current liabilities (32,358) - - (32,358)
Pension scheme liability - (6,590,000) - (6,590,000}
Total net assets 329,5,66 (6,582,867) 24,530,673 18,277,472

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Perision Scheme
England and Wales (T P8) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Hymans Robertson LLP. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £234,919 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021: £167,079) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheéme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Caluation of the TeachersCPension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019,
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Penslon and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)
* ‘total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

past service deficit of £22,000 million

* the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment refurn. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of
prices-and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real earnings  growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The

assumed hominal rate of returiy including eamings growth Is 4.45%,
The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid fo the TPS in the period amounted to £1,209,353 (2021; £1,121 .328).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Dovernment Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future years are % for
employers and % for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilites would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2022 2021

£ £
Employer's contributions 646,000 436,000
Employees' contributions 173,000 123,000
Total contributions 819,000 559,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2022 2021
Rate of increase in salaries 3.6 34
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.1 29
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.3 1.7
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - Pre April 2008 service 50.0 50.0
Commutation of pensions to lump sums - Post April 2008 service 75.0 75.0
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22  Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021
Dears Uears
Retiring today
- Males 217 21.7
- Females 24.1 24.1
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 228 21.7
- Females 25.8 25.8
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2022 2021
£ £
Discount rate + 0.1% 236,000 372,000
Discount rate - 0,1% (236,000) (372,000)
Mortality assumption + 1 year 411,000 642,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year (411,000) {642,000)
CPlrate + 0.1% 222,000 342,000
CPlrate - 0.1% (222,000) (342,000)
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme 2022 2021
Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities 6,638,490 6,332,170
Bonds 1,539,360 1,890,200
Property 1,346,940 1,134,120
Other assets 96,210 94,510
Total market value of assets 9,621,000 9,451,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £(641,000) (2021: £1,404,000),
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 2022 2021
£ £
Cument service cost 1,728,000 970,000
Interest income (162,000) (120,000)
Interest cost 280,000 198,000

Total operating charge 1,846,000 1,048,000
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22  Penslon and similar obligations
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2022
£
At 1 September 2021 16,041,000
Obligations acquired on conversion -
Current service cost 1,728,000
Interest cost 280,000
Employee contributions 173,000
Actuarial (gain)loss (7,927,000)
Benefits paid (8,000)
At 31 August 2022 10,287,000
Changes in the fair value of the academy trust’s share of scheme assets
2022
£
At 1 September 2021 9,451,000
Assets acquired on conversion -
Interest income 162,000
Actuarial loss/(gain) (803,000)
Employer contributions 646,000
Employee contributions 173,000
Benefits paid (8,000)
At 31 August 2022 9,621,000
23  Reconciliation of net (expenditure)Tincome to net cash flon from operating activities
2022
Notes £
Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the
statement of financial activities) (607,497)
Adjusted for:
Net surplus on conversion to academy -
GCapital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,578,629)
Investment income receivable ] (109)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 22 1,082,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 22 118,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 786,397
(Loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets -
{Increase) in debtors (464,162)
Increase in creditors 460,439
Net cash used in operating activities

(203,561)
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(Continued)

2021
£

10,996,000
1.240,000
970,000
198,000
123,000
2,521,000
(7,000)

16,041,000

2021
£

6,729,000
766,000
120,000

1,284,000
436,000
123,000

(7,000)

9,451,000

2021

1,105,182

(2,426,850)
(164,786)
(81)
534,000
78,000
639,848
(1,848)
(554,254)
288,319

(502,470)
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24  Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September

2021

£

Cash 430,454
Loans falling due within one year (9,067)
Loans falling due after more than one year (32,358)
389,029

25 Contingent liabilities

Cash flows
£
(119,970)

9,067

(110,903)

31 August
2022
£

310,484
(9,067)
(23,291)

278,126

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the academy
serving notice, the academy trust shall repay o the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:
* the value at that time of the academy trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose

of the academy trust; and

* the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing these assets was met by payments by the

Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement
26 Long-term commitments

Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy frust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due in two and five years

27 Capital commitments

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts

2022

108,109
189,383

297,492

2022
£

31,072

2021

93,553
94,790

188,343

2021
£

During the year the Trust have been successful in obtaining capital funding from the ESFA. The projects
covered by this funding have yet to start at the year end. As part of the funding the Trust have committed to

expenditure from free reserves of £31,072,

In addition to this the funding includes a loan repayable to the ESFA of £16,997.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Related party transactions

Owing to the nalure of the academy trust's operations and the compositioh 6f the board of trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the academy trust has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations. are’ conducted at armi's
length and in accordance with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures,

The following related party transactions took place with the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary, Manor Sports &
Leisure Lirnited, in the period of account:

a) The academy trust recharged staff costs and other €xpenses totalling £117,968 (2021: £127,317)
to the subsidiary
b) At 31 August 2022 other debtors included £54,231 (2021; £37,580) due from the subsidiary

In entering into these transactions, the academy trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy
Trust Handbook 2021,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it belng wound up while he or she' is a member, or within one ‘year after he or she ceasgs to be-a meinber,
such amount a@s may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member,



